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CHAIR COUCH: ... (gavel). . . Good afternoon and welcome to the Planning Committee meeting of
December 3 rd , 2012, the last Planning Committee meeting of this term. 1 want to first ask
everybody to turn off their cell phones or at least put them in silent mode. And I want to
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welcome the voting Members of this Committee, Committee Vice-Chair Gladys Baisa. Good
afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Let's see. Committee. . .I mean Council Vice-Chair Joe Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And then we have Councilmember Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And Councilmember Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: And excused is Elle Cochran and Council Chair Danny Mateo. And let's see, we
have no non-voting Members, and we have Will Spence, the Director of Planning.
MR. SPENCE: Aloha and merry Christmas, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Aloha and merry Christmas. And we have Michael Hopper who is the Corporation
Counsel.
MR. HOPPER: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And the Committee Staff, we have Legislative Analyst, Kim
Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. Legislative Analyst, Michele Yoshimura.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And Legislative Attorney, Gina Gormley.
MS. GORMLEY: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And Committee Secretary, Clarita Balala. Good afternoon.
Alright, before I open the floor for testimony this afternoon, I would like to explain the intention
of this agenda today. Two items are listed on the agenda for possible action, and the rest of the
items I'm recommending to be referred to the Council for the term beginning January 2, 2013.
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The two items that we're gonna discuss today is PC-27, which is Residential Districts and PC-40
Transient Vacation Rentals Legislation. As members, you know but the public may not know
there are items on the whole agenda that are automatically being referred or automatically being
filed, and then there are some that we need to manually refer and manually file. And so that's
where we're going today. I intend on taking no other action than moving the things forward or
filing. If there's any comments on that, I'd be happy to take 'em; otherwise, we're ready to open
public testimony. Do we have any testifiers?
MS. BALALA: Just one.
CHAIR COUCH: Just one, okay. Who is that person? Oh, sorry. Yeah. Here it is. Right here. Daniel
Kanahele, and Members, Daniel Kanahele is the only one that's signed up to testify.
...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MR. KANAHELE: Aloha, Chair Couch and Committee Members, Mele Kalikimaka, Merry Christmas.
My name is Daniel Kanahele and I will be testifying on two agenda items today. First is the
compliance report for Makena Resort. I understand the intentions of some of your agenda items.
It's just to refer it 'til the 2013 Council, but I'd just like take a few minutes to make some
comments with regards to. . .beginning with this agenda item. The County Council can put any
condition that it deems prudent on any development that comes before it for entitlements, but
what is the procedure for follow-through to make sure that conditions are enforced? We often
find that applicants will accept the conditions put on their projects, and then we'll come back
later or their assignees will come back later and ask for those conditions to be changed. The land
of Makena Resort has a long history. Back in the 1970s, the Seibu Company purchased
hundreds, thousands of acres of ag land from Ulupalakua and over the years they built two golf
courses and a hotel. Since then the ownership of the land has changed hands several times `til
the current owners ATC Makena Holdings, which now own the land and also are responsible for
all the conditions that run with that land. Now there're something like 44 conditions put on the
zoning of these lands and seems like a lot of conditions but a lot of those conditions represent
community benefits like workforce housing, contributions to funding and building of schools -and, you know, in the Kihei area all of our schools are just about full to capacity and we don't
have a high school yet, so we could definitely use additional funding for our schools -- funding
for transportation improvements like the widening of the Piilani Highway, funding for expansion
of parking lots to beach access in the Makena area, and also for the expansion of beaches in the
Makena area, and funding for improvements of Makena State Park. You know, these are
included in some of those many conditions, these are community benefits that we got in return
for the lucrative entitlements that were given to the previous owners and that ran with the land,
that run with the land today, and that need to be complied with by the current owners. So
my. . .one of my concerns is that should we be giving any more entitlements to Makena Resort
until they have complied or fulfilled their conditions of zoning that already exist on the land, and
of concern to me is the addition of 390 acres, possible -CHAIR COUCH: One minute.
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MR. KANAHELE: --addition 390 acres to the Urban Growth Boundary in Makena. I think it's
important that they fulfill the conditions that are already run with the land, the lands that are
already entitled. I know this is not a benefit but it will put 'em in a position to get benefits in the
future. It's like a child that comes to you and says, daddy or mommy, can I have some more ice
cream, and you look down at their bowl, and it's full of ice cream. And you say, well, you need
to eat your ice cream first and why don't you go out and do that chore you promised to do, then
come back and maybe I'll give you some more ice cream. And that's an analogy here, they've
got their entitlements, they have their ice cream and their cake, let them eat that first and then
come back and ask for any future entitlements. So that's something that I'm concerned with. I'd
like to go on to the other agenda item, which is the Annual Compliance report of Honua'ula. I'm
testifying on behalf of Maui Cultural Lands. Maui Cultural Lands is a Maui-based, grassroots
community organization that has as its mission to protect, restore, and stabilize Hawaiian culture
resources. Maui Cultural Lands has worked hand-in-hand with many landowners and developers
to help stabilize native plants and historical and cultural sites found in the land that they own or
are planning to development. We as an organization has offered many times to help Honua'ula
Partners to comply with the conditions of zoning, specifically condition 26, which refers to the
need to have a preservation mitigation plan accepted by State Historic Preservation Division and
OHA. One of the prerequisites for completing that would be to have an Archaeological
Inventory Survey that has been accepted by State Historic Preservation Division. Now it's been
four years since this project has received zoning entitlements and still to this day, there has not
been an Archaeological Inventory Survey accepted by State Historic Preservation Division.
Why is it taking so long? SHPD has asked many times for additional information to be provided
by the developer and as a result they've had to update their Archaeological Inventory Survey
many times over the years, 2008, 2010, 2011, 2012. The holdup in the acceptance of the
Archaeological Inventory Survey, AIS, has not been with the State Historic Preservation
Division. It has been with the developer. The State has been waiting on information needed for
them to effectively review the Archaeological Inventory Survey, and I want to make it clear on
the record that this is what has been happening. Maui Cultural Lands has offered to assist in the
completion of the Archaeological Inventory Survey. We have offered help on behalf of lineal
descendants of that land, people who know where sites are located, what sites significance those
sites may have. They include individuals like Ekolu Lindsey, Jacob Mau, Daniel Ornellas,
Joyclynn Costa, Angel Mau, to name only a few. And over the years we have found that our
invitations to help have not been accepted as readily as we would like to have them accepted.
More often than not it's been the help of advisory committees like the Maui Planning
Commission, which asked in the review of the AIS
CHAIR COUCH: One minute.
MR. KANAHELE: --I'll take one minute to conclude--to meet with us on a site visit and they did. We
had a site visit back in October of 2010. It was at the behest of the State Historic Preservation
Division that we had a consultation meeting with the developers and their consultants, and now
it's at the behest of SHPD that we're going to have a site visit in the near future hopefully to
remedy the inadequacies of the Archaeological Inventory Survey. So although we thank Honua
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[sic] Partners, LLC for their willingness to help us help them, we found that there has been
resistance over the years to our efforts to help them and we hope that this will be resolved
shortly. So I'm just sharing this with you so that you know what's happening with these various
conditions. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kanahele. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I got one.
CHAIR COUCH: Hearing. . .oh, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Daniel for being here.
MR. KANAHELE: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Very good insights in regards to both developments. So when
developments say they really don't want to meet with your group, which is the Honua'ula
Partners and why is that?
MR. KANAHELE: I wouldn't say they didn't want to meet with us, but, you know, we've offered to
help them and they have not responded to our invitations. We've offered to help them in writing,
via e-mails, and letters that we've submitted that they have copies to, of to State Historic
Preservation Division. We offered to help them in our testimony before the Maui Planning
Commission. And most recently at the November 2011 consultation that we had with them and
their consultants, and present at that meeting were representatives from SHPD, lineal
descendants, and we offered, we were more than happy to come on the land and help you to
finish the Archeological Inventory Survey, and we never got a response back, direct response
back from their representative. And it's really been the State Historic Preservation Division,
which has acted as sort of like a go-between that has helped facilitate getting this thing done. All
we want to do is see it get done according to the State laws, and so we find that there's been a
little. . .1 would describe it as a little resistance to them hearing what we have to share with them.
That's of a concern.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, we do have some compliance report by both, not
both but from Honua'ula Partners, I think once every year, something like that. But anyway, the
question in regards to, you know, what conditions are already met, you know those types of
questions probably can be best answered by the Planning Director here this afternoon. So for
both projects, Makena Resort, I know there are over 40 conditions -MR. KANAHELE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --and some of `em are. . .had been met, but the ones that haven't
been met, you know, where are they at, at this time? So thank you for your testimony.
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MR. KANAHELE: If I may just add one quick comment.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. KANAHELE: The good news is that we have agreed to a site visit with State Historic Preservation
Division and the developers to take place on December 13 th , which is next week Thursday with
Maui Cultural Lands and individuals who have knowledge of sites and their significance. So this
is huge. This is what we've been hoping for, so that's great news. I hope this will have a great
outcome for us.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good. Thank you.
MR. KANAHELE: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Members, any other questions? Hearing none, thank you, Mr. Kanahele.
MR. KANAHELE: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Members, I don't see anybody else who have signed up. I'll ask anybody who is in
the audience if they want to testify to come on down. If not, seeing. . .somebody is at the desk.
Are you gonna. . .are you anticipating testifying? Okay. Please state your name and then what
your. . .when you're done testifying please sign the form in the back, please.
MS. APANA: Okay. I'm sorry. She was just telling me that I could only testify about certain. .
would like to add to Mr. Kanahele's
CHAIR COUCH: Your name please.
MS. APANA: --testimony. My name is Claire Apana. I live in Wailuku. And I just would like to say
that I have witnessed all the work that Mr. Kanahele has done over these years and he is a
resident of that area. And he's really put his heart and soul into this and done some fabulous,
excellent work to bring out what should've been brought out by the developer and the
development and the archaeology report, the cultural impact assessment. And sometimes it
seems like there's no forum, but he's gone beyond that to really reach out to the developer and
their team and the State Historic Preservation to make sure that this project has everything that it
can have to preserve this dry land forest. And I hope that you will ask the appropriate questions
of the developer to make sure that he's actually complying with these conditions, because I
didn't. . .1 was here two years ago and listened to the report and it didn't sound like we were on
the same land. So please in all with the due diligence and Mr. Kanahele's questions, please
make sure that his work doesn't go into oblivion because there's no place for the public to speak
up to make things come out in the best way possible. And so thank you very much.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions of the testifier? Hearing none. You
want to give testimony?
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MS. SIX: Yes, please.
CHAIR COUCH: Come on down and state your name please, then fill out the form.
MS. SIX: Yeah, I just filled out the form.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MS. SIX: Hi, my name is Dr. Janet Six and I'm an archaeologist. Hello.
CHAIR COUCH: Hello. Go ahead. Proceed.
MS. SIX: I've worked with Daniel Kanahele on this project and actually met with some of the
developers and Charlie Jencks and some of the other people on Wailea 670. I also know we're
talking about Makena. And I just want to say I've offered many times to bring students in and to
mitigate archaeology cost to do a more efficient survey. Numerous archaeological sites are not
accounted for in the current survey. I've walked the property, I've seen the sites myself, and I
met with Aki Sinoto, and so the ideas. . .so maybe we could help by documenting some more of
these sites and mitigating the cost to the developer, because once they're gone, they're gone. So
I never heard back from Aki on that. ..Mr. Sinoto. So I'm just putting it back, back out there
that community members and people at the college are welcome to help if any way we can to
identify sites to further preserve them and to save the developer the cost of expensive
archaeological surveys. That's it.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Dr. Six. Members, any questions of the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. And I think that's everybody else in the gallery. So Members, without any
objections I'll close the public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Public testimony is closed.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
ITEM NO. 27: RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS (Cc 10-210)
CHAIR COUCH: Alright, Members, we're here...we have a couple of items...quite a few items on the
agenda, but it's all relatively quick, I think. Well let's go up with PC-27 first, which is
Residential Districts. This item is relating to home occupations and home-based businesses. It
was transmitted by the Planning Department a while back. We met on the item once and after
hearing the discussion at the meeting, on advice of Corporation Counsel, we draft. . .a new bill
was drafted and referred to the Planning Commission. That bill is now listed here on this
Committee under item number PC-33 and will automatically be referred to the next Council
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term. My recommendation is to file this Communication as it may no longer be applicable since
it's old stuff Any comments or questions from the..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR COUCH: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What was the number again?
CHAIR COUCH: PC-27, Residential.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 27 you said 33 so that's why I got confused. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So Chair, there.. .
CHAIR COUCH: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So Chair, you're recommending filing because there is another bill on this
subject.
CHAIR COUCH: Correct. We have a. . .rewritten home-based business bill that coming. . .that's been
brought back and it's under item PC-33, which is gonna be automatically referred.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. So it's not here.
CHAIR COUCH: Right, it wouldn't be on there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: So any further discussion? Alright so, I'll entertain a motion to file PC-27.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. That's actually County Communication number 10-210. Alright, any
discussion? All those in favor, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR COUCH: Opposed? Motion carries five zero with two excused, Chair Mateo and Ms. Cochran.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

December 3, 2012

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Couch, Vice-Chair Baisa, and Councilmembers
Pontanilla, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FILING of communication.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. Now we're on to PC-40, which is Transient Vacation Rentals Legislation.
This item contains a package of bills transmitted by the Department in 2008 relating to TVRs
and B&Bs, and at that time Ms. Baisa brought up the B&B portion of this and passed the B&B
bill, and then this term we brought up short-term rentals and passed that bill. So essentially this
is old legislation and it just needs to be filed. Ifs stuff that we're not gonna use.
ITEM NO. 40 TRANSIENT VACATION RENTALS LEGISLATION

(CC 08-61)

VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Recommendation.
CHAIR COUCH: I recommend that we file County Communication number 08-61.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Moved...so moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR COUCH: . . .(cough.․). . . Excuse me. It's been moved by Ms. Baisa and seconded by
Mr. Victorino. Any further comments? All those in favor, say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR COUCH: Opposed? Motion carries, five ayes and zero noes, and two excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Couch, Vice-Chair Baisa, and Councilmembers
Pontanilla, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FILING OF COMMUNICATION.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. So, Members, the rest, unless you have any comments and want to discuss
any one of these, the recommendation is that the. . .those Communications be referred to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2013 pursuant to Rule 23 of the Rules of the
Council. Mr. Pontanilla, you have.. .
PC-12

FEE STRUCTURE FOR DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

PC-20

MAXIMUM WALL HEIGHT IN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICTS

PC-21

MAKENA RESORT CHANGE IN ZONING COMPLIANCE WITH
CONDITIONS RELATING TO ACCESS FOR PARKS AND
RECREATION

PC-25

REPETITIVE LOSS PROPERTIES FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT
PLAN

PC-28

ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT — CHANGE IN ZONING
CONDITIONS (ORDINANCE 3613 (2009)) FOR MAKENA RESORT
AREA

PC-30

PERMITTING TRANSIENT VACATION RENTALS IN PLANNED
DEVELOPMENTS APPROVED ON OR BEFORE APRIL 20, 1981

PC-31

TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

PC-34

ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT - HONUA'ULA
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PC-41

LANAI CITY COUNTRY TOWN BUSINESS DISTRICT DESIGN
GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS 2011

PC-45

ALLOWABLE NUMBER OF SHORT-TERM RENTAL HOMES IN THE
KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA

PC-47

TRAFFIC IMPACT FEES

PC-48

DEADLINE FOR A COMMUNITY PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE TO
FORWARD ITS RECOMMENDED REVISIONS

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, just a question for Planning Department in regards to the
testifiers. In regards to. . .how do we investigate or look at the conditions that are imposed upon
developments? You know, where they are as far as some compliance report updates.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, we now have Ms. McLean. She. . .Mr. Spence transfigured into Ms. McLean.
That was really good.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Pulled a switch on you.
MS. MCLEAN: Just a. . .I guess more of a general response is anytime Council has questions about an
issue you can bring that forward to Council and it would get referred to Committee for
discussion. So if there is a specific project and specific issues then that item can be really
focused or if it's just a general discussion over enforcement, we can have that discussion as well.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So the conditions themselves though, is there any follow-up by
you folks or Public Works or whatever department?
MS. MCLEAN: At different stages of a project when construction permits come to the Planning
Department, we verify compliance with conditions. What we're aiming to do more and more
with any type of project condition is for them to have some sort of timing mechanism so that it's
not an open-ended condition where an applicant might be able to say, well I don't have to comply
with that condition yet, where the County would be saying, oh, you haven't fulfilled that
condition yet. So we're looking for some sort of timing mechanism, you know, prior to the
issuance of building permits or prior to the issuance of certificates of occupancy so that it's really
black and white to anybody when those conditions have to be fulfilled. So we're aiming to do
that for all types of projects, but right now we still have those as points where we can check
compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You know, thank you for that comment. The only time we have
chance to question developers is when we impose a condition that they come here on an annual
basis to provide that information. So I'm glad you guys working forward in regards to having,
you know, developments come up and tell the County, you know, where they are. So thank you.
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MS. MCLEAN: You're welcome.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Hopper.
MR. HOPPER: Just to point out of course. The. . .those. . .both of those projects annual compliance
reports are the items that are being referred to the Council Chair so that they'll stay on the. . .in,
within the Council. . .plus they're annual reports so there should be a new annual report, I think,
as time goes on.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Members, any further questions? Then without objection, this list of
items that would normally auto-file are being...I'm asking to have them put to the Council Chair
for the next term. Any objections?

COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: EC and DAM)
ACTION: Recommending REFERRAL of PC-12, PC-20, PC-21,
PC-25, PC-28, PC-30, PC-31, PC-34, PC-41, PC-45, PC-47,
and PC-48 to the Council Chair for the term beginning
January 2, 2013, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Rules of the
Council.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. That being said, Members, I want to thank you very much for attending all the
meetings. We've had some pretty tough ones, the Short-Term Rental bill. I really, really
appreciate all the hard work that you guys have put in. It was my freshman time on the...as a
Committee and it was a tough one, and I really appreciate your assistance and manao. I want to
thank the Staff. Kim, you've done an excellent job. Clarita, excellent job, and Gina and
Michele, thank you for being backups, and of course, Mr. Hopper and the Planning Department.
I really appreciate all the hard work we've put in...you've put in a lot. So with that being said,
unless somebody has any other comments, thank you very much. Merry Christmas to everybody
and Happy New Year. Aloha. . . . (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 2:00 p.m.
APPROVED:

DONALD a COUCH, JR., &air
Planning Committee
pc:min:121203

Transcribed by: Michelle Balala
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